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FINANCIAL SECTION




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Christianshurg, Virginia

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmenial
activities, business-lype  activilies, and each major fund of the Town of
Christiansburg, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which
collectively comprise the Towivs basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. .~ These f(inancial statements are the responsibility of the Town of
Christiansburg’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit.

we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, and Specifications for Audits of Couniies, Cities and Towns
issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those
standards require that we plan and performy the audit to obfain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemenis are free of malterial
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts anc disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation,
we believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

I our opinion, the financial statements referred (o above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the businesstype activilics, and each major fund of the Town of Christiansburg as
of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated November 12, 2010, on our consideration of the Town of Christiansburg’s
internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal conirol
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 1o
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.,
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Ametrica require
that the management's discussion and analysis and Virginia Retirement System -
Schedule of Funding Progress, on pages 4 through 10, and 32, respectively, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an esserntial
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical coniext. We have applied cerlain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
2




responses 1o our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufiicient evidence (0 express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the Town of Christiansburg’s basic financial
stalements as a whole. The Supplementary Information included in Schedules |
through 6, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governmenis, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of
the financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the
responsibility of management and it was derived rom and relates directly 10 the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the (inancial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedurcs applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information
is fairly stated in all maierial respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole. The Supplementary Information has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly.
we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

kil B Lok O PC

November 12, 2010



TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

The following discussion and analysis of the Town of Christiansburg's financial
performance provides an overview of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal
yvear ended June 30, 2010. It should be read in conjunction with the Town's basic
financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGIHTS

¢ The Townrs total net assets increased by $2,301,236 during the fiscal year,
on the govemmenl-wide basis. The Town's total net assels, on the
government-wide basis, totaled $143,624,469 at June 30, 2010. Of this
amount, $14.885,873 may be used (o meet ongoing obligations to citizens
and creditors, $128,448,812 is invested in capital assets, net of related debt
and $280,784 is restricted {or perpetual care in the Cemetery Fund.

« On a govermnment-wide basis [or govermnmental activiies, the Town had
expenses (including ransfers) net of program revenues of 518,606,379,
which totaled $1,64.5,557 less than the general revenues, of $20,341,936.

e Al Junc 30, 2010, the Town's governmental funds balance sheet reported
total ending fund balances of $13,729,205 of which $13,502,570 is
unreserved and $226,635 reserved for perpetual care for the cemetery.

OVERVIEW OF TIHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Towin's
basic financial statements. The Town's financial statements present two types of
statements, each with a different snapshot of the Town's finances. The focus is on
both the Town as a whole (government-wide) and the fund financial statements.
The government-wide financial statements provide both short-term and long-term
information about the Town's overall financial status. The fund financials focus on
the individual parts of the Town government, reporting the Town's operations in
more detail than the government-wide statements, which present a longer-term
view, Presentation of both perspeclives provides the user a broader overview,
enhances the basis for comparisons, and better reflects the Towi's accountability.

Governmenlt-wWide Financial Statcmenis

The government-wide linancial statements include the Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities. These statements provide information about the Town
as a whole using the accrual basis of accounting, which is the method usced by
most privaie-sector enterprises.  All current year revenues and expenses aic
reported in the Statement of Aclivities regardless of when cash is received or paid.
These statements allow readers 1o answer the question, "Is the Town's financial
position, as a whole, belter or worse as a result of the year's activities?”

One of the main goals of these two slatements is o report the Town's net assets
and changes that affected net assets during the fiscal year. The change in the
Town's net assets, the difference between assets and liabilities, is one way {0
measwre the Town's financial health, or financial position. Increases or decreases
in net assets are indicators of whether the TownYs financial health is improving or
deteriorating. Other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the Town's property
tax base and the condition of the Towir's infrastructure should also be considered
in assessing the overall financial health of the Town.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

In the Stalement of Net Asseils and the Statement of Activities, the Town's fund-
based activity is classilied as follows:

Governmental aclivities — Most of the Towi's basic services arc reported here,
including general government, public safety, public works, health and welfare,
parks and recreation, cemelery and community development.  Property (axes,
other local taxes, and federal and state grants finance most of these activilies.

Business-lype activilies — The Town's water and sewer operations are reported
here as the Town charges a fee to customers designed 1o cover all or most of the
cost of the services it provides.

Fund Financial Statements

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the fund financial
statement presentation more familiar, The fund financial statements focus on the
Town's most significant funds rather than fund types. The fund financial
statements hegin on page 13 and provide detailed information about the most
significant funds, not the Town as a whole. The Town has two types of funds:

Governmental funds - Most of the Towmls basic services are included in
governmenial funds.  Fundbased statements for these funds focus on how
resources flow into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end (hal
are available for future spending. These funds are reported on the modified
accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash and other liquid assets that can
readily be convertect to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
shortterm overview that helps the reader determine the financial resources that
can be spent in the near fulure to finance the Towny's programs. The differences
between governmental activities as reported in the government-wide and fund
financial statements are reconciled in Exhibits D and F on pages 14 and 16,

The Cemetery Fund (Permanent Fund) is a nonrnajor Governmenial Fund. The
Town as of April 1, 2008 ook over control of the Town's cemetery.

The Special Revenue Fund is used in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are legally restricied by contract or donor to expenditure for a specified purposc.

Proprietary funds — When the Town charges customers for the services it provides,
whether to outside customers or {o other units of the Town, these services are
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprictary funds, like the government-
wide statements, utilize ihe accrual basis of accounting, and their statements
provide both short and long-term financial information.

The Town's enterprise fund, one type of proprietary fund, is the same as the
govemment-wide business-type activities: however, the fund financial stailements
provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. The Town's
enterprise fund is the water and Sewer Fund.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OFF THE TOWN AS A WHOLE

As noled catlier, net asscts may serve over time as a uscful indicator of a
governments (inancial position. In the case of the Town of Christiansburg, assels
exceeded liabilities by $143,624,469 at the close of the most recenl fiscal year,

By far the largest portion of the Town of Christiansburd’s net assels {89 percent)
reflects its investment in capital assels (e.g., land, buildings and struciures, and
equipment);, less any related debt used o acquire those assets that are still
outstanding. The Town of Christianshurg uses these capital assets o provide
services to cilizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
{(CONTINUELD}

spending. Although the Town of Christiansburg's investment in its capital assels is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed (o repay
this debt must be provided rom other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate the liabilitics.

Summary of Net Assels:

The following table presents a condensed summary of het assets:

Summary of Net Asscts

As of June 30, 2010
(In Thousands)
Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Current and other assets $ 19,130 § 22,969 §% 1,08G § 960 $ 200210 $ 23,869
Capital assets, net 110,503 103,195 39,349 30,418 149,852 142,613
Total Assets 129,633 126,104 40,429 40,378 170,062 166,482
Other liabilities 3,516 1,237 800 783 4,316 2,020
Long-term liabilities 14,016 14,411 8,106 8,728 22,122 23,139
Total Liabilities 17,532 15,648 8,906 9,511 26,438 25,159
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 97,269 89,443 31,180 30,681 128,449 120,124
Restricted 290 228 - - 290 228
Unrestricted 14,542 20,785 343 186 14,885 20971
Total Net Assets $ 112,101 § 11045 § 31,523 § 30,867 $ 143,624 3 141,323

The Towtrs compined net assets increased from $141,323,233 (0 $5143,624,469 as a
result of the increase in net assets of both Business-type activities of $655.680 and
the Governmental activities of $1,645,557. Unrestricted net assets, the potrtion of
net assets that can be used 1o finance the day-o-day operations of the Town
totaled $14,885,873. Invested in capital assets, represenis the amount of capital
assets owned by the Town, including infrastructure, net of any outstanding debt.
Net assets are reported as restricted when constraints on assct use are externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, regulators, or are imposed by law
through constitutional provisions. The total amount of restricted net assets is
$280,784 which is restricted for the use of perpetual care in the Cemetery Fund.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(CONTINUED)

Summary of Changes in Net Assets:

The following lable shows the revenues and expenses of the government:

Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General Revenues:
Property taxes
Local portion of state sales taxes
Business and professional
occupational license taxes
Utility faxes
Prepared food and beverage taxes
Commonwealth share-personal
property taxes
Cigarelfe tax
E-9!1 and communication taxes
Transient room taxes
Other taxes
Permits, Fees and Licenses
Interest and Invesiment Income
Fines and Forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Cemetery
Payments from Other Governments-
State and Federal
Total Revenues
Expenses
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Parks, Recreation and Cultural
Community Development
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Water
Total Expenses
Capital contributions
Gain (loss) on sale of land
Insurance recoveries
Transfers
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning
Net Assets, Ending

Summary of Changes in Net Assets
(In Thousands)

Governmental

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Business-type

Total Primary

Activities Activities Government
2010 2009 20160 2009 2010 2009
1,397 $ 1,400 § 5933 § 5,602 8 7,330 % 7,002
428 - - - 428 -
803 - - - 803 -
2,990 2,997 - - 2,990 2,997
1,483 1,559 - - 1,483 1,559
1,962 1,991 - - 1,962 1,991
554 517 - - 554 517
4,504 4,684 - - 4,504 4,684
229 229 - - 229 229
743 773 - - 743 773
958 997 - - 958 997
749 852 - - 749 852
1,099 1,012 - - 1,099 1,012
204 138 - - 204 138
264 486 - - 264 486
119 87 - - 119 87
329 1,202 129 121 458 1,323
96 102 - - 96 102
3,186 3,521 - - 3,186 3,521
22,097 22,547 6,062 5,723 28,159 28,270
2,205 1,871 - - 2,205 1,871
8,022 6,969 - - 8,022 6,969
6,314 4,976 - - 6,314 4,976
3 3 - - 3 3
2,620 2,326 - - 2,620 2,326
1,393 1,270 - - 1,393 1,270
60 365 - - 60 365
- - 6,188 5,784 6,188 5,784
20,617 17,780 6,188 5,784 26,805 23,564
788 1,634 75 490 863 2,124
- (36) - - - (36)
84 28 - - 84 28
(707) (1,315} 707 1315 - -
1,645 5,078 656 1,744 2,301 6,822
110,456 105,378 30,867 29,123 141,323 134,501
112,101 % 110456 § 31,523 § 30,807 $ 143,624 § 141,323




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

The properly tax classification, which comprises approximately 4% of total
revenue generated by governmental activities, includes real estate tax, the local
portion of personal property tax, machinery & tools tax and public service
corporation taxes. Real estate tax revenue, totaled $2,.270,582.

Sales laxes, consumers uiility taxes, Commonwealth share of personal property
taxes, business and professional occupational license taxes, prepared food and
beverage laxcs, transient room taxes, E-911 taxes, and cigarette taxes comprise the
majority of other local taxes collected by the Town. Other taxes comprise
approximately 56% of total revenues generated for governmental activities and are
the largest source of revenue for the Town,

Payments from other Governmenis - State and Federal comprise approximately
14% of governmental aclivities revenues. Street maintenance funds, and funding
received under House Bill 599 for law enforcement are some of the major sources

of revenue included in this category.

Charges for services include items such as recreationat {fees and garbage collection
fees represent approximaiely 6% of the governmental activities revenues.

Public Safety expenses comprised approximalely 39% of expenses of the
governmental activities.  Operations of the labor-intensive Police Department are
included in this category, along with expenses of the Building Inspections, Rescue
Squad, Fire Depariment and E-911 Call Center.

Public Works cxpenses comprised approximately 31% of governmental activilies
expenses. LExpenscs for Solid waste Management, Building Maintenance, Street
Paving, and Street Maintenance are included in the Public Works category.

Recreation expenses comprised approximately 13%  of government activilics
eXpenses.

An additional $707,721 in cash was fransferred from the General Fund to the
water/Sewer Fund during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010.

community Development and Health & welfare include such items as industrial
development, planning district commission, planning, and engineering services.

The net assets of business-type activities increased approximately $655,680 during
the fiscal year. This includes water and sewer lines installed by developers and
donated to the Town.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the governmental funds reflect a total fund
balance of $13,720.205. Of this amount $13,439,422 constiiutes unwreserved fund
halance, which is availablc for spending for services and capital projects, such as
the Aguatic Center. As & measure of the General Funds liquidity, it may be useful
to compare unreserved {fund balance to total fund expenditures.

The General Fund balance decreased by $6,090,092 during the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2010 primarily from the use of bond proceeds and prior year
appropriations for the construction of the Aquatic Center.

1 ocal laxes gencrated the majority of General Fund revenue, totaling approximaiely
$15,105,369 in fiscal year ending June 30, 2010.

Intergovernmental revenue is the second largest source of General Fund revenues,
generating approximately $3,685,031 in fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. The
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

majority of this revenue is received from the Commonwealth anc includes
reimbursement for law enforcement funding received under House Bill 599, and
sireet maintenance funds.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Budgeted General Fund revenues exceeded ihe actual revenues by $7.672.847
due in large part to amounts budgeted for previous appropriations, carry over,
bond proceeds and bond construction [unds in the amount of $6,454,148 that were
in the fund balance from prior years but budgeted as a revenue that was not
received during the fiscal year.

General Fund expenditures were less than the budgdeted amount by $553,302.
Actual expenses for the police department and the fire depariment were less than
the budgeted amount by $863,059. The Aquatic Center Constructon actual
expenses cxceeded budgeted amounts by $829,147 and the transfers in the
amount of $848,485 were not budgeted.

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of June 30, 2010, the Towrrs capital assels for its governmental and business-
type activitiecs amounted (o $149,852,448 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment includes land, streets and highways, consiruction in progress, land
improvemenis, buildings and structures, vehicles, equipment, infrastructure and
bond issue costs. The total net increase {additions less retirements and
depreciation) in the Towm's investment in capital assets for the cunrent fiscal year
was $7,239,071.

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

June 30,2010 June 30,2009 June 30,2010 June 30,2009 June 30, 201G June 30, 2009
Land $ 2,044 % 2,144 $ 12 8§ - 3 2,156 $ 2,144
Construction in Progress 21,413 14,857 - - 21,413 14,857
Streets & Highways 75,112 74,314 - - 75,112 74,314
Land linprovements 648 678 - - 648 678
Buildings & Structures 6,696 6,761 19,897 20,167 26,593 26,928
Equipment 2,555 2,598 19,440 19,251 21,995 21.849
Vehicles 686 080G - - 686 680
Infrastructure 1,105 1,013 - - 1,105 1,013
Bond Issue Cost 144 150 144 150
Total $ 110,503 3§ 103,195 § 39,349 3 39418 % 146,852 § 142,613

The changes in each category of Capital Assets are presented in detail in note 7 1o
the Basic Financial Statements.

Major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following:

e Construction in Progress — The Aquatic Center which was substantially
completed as of June 30, 2010 and opened for use July 17, 2010.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Al June 30, 2010, the Town's long-lerm liabilitics, not including compensated
absences, landfifl closure, bond premiums and postclosurc care costs payable,
totaled $21,180,439 comprised of $13,165,000 related to governmental activities,
and $8,015,430 relaled 1o business-lype activilies.  Total debt decreased by
$1,149,055 during the fiscal year.

9



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

The Charter of the Town of Christiansburg and Code of Virginia limits the Town's
net debt to 10% of the assessed valuation of real estate within the Town limits.
This limit applies to governmental activity debt only, as long-term liabilities of
business-ype funds will be met by revenues generaled by those funds. The
Town's governmental activity debt of $13,165,000 is well below the legal debt [imit

of 5182,727,448.

Interest and fiscal charges for fiscal year ending June 30, 2010 were $60,257 of the
total governmental activities expenses.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

During the period between the first quarters of calendar years 2009 and 2010,
Montgomery County 1ost 1,240 (-3.1%) jobs according (o the Virginia Employment
Commission. The manufacturing sector lost 246 {-4.9% ) jobs,

Another indicator of the state of the economy is the sales tax revenue, which is
directly proporlional to the retail sales. This revenue decreased $76,000 or -4.9%
between budget years 2009 and 2010.

Also transient lodging lax revenue decreased $103,000 or -12.1% and prepared
meals tax revenue decreased $180,000 or -3.9% .

Building permits for new residential units in fiscal year 2009-2010 decreased by 25
units or -23% compared to fiscal year 2008-2000 units. Overall, building permils
fees increased by $66,000 or 47.8% this was primarily a result of the Montgomery
County Court House and a few other commercial construction projects.

These signals seem to indicate that the economy in our area is still declining and
feeling the economic recession as is evident across the United States.

The 2010-2011 budget includes a rate increase for water and sewer fees o help
offset the deficit in the enterprise fund and a 1% increase in the meals tax.

CONTACTING THE TOWN'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, faxpayers, Customers,
invesiors and creditors with a gencral overview of the Townrs finances and to
demonstrate the Towirs accountability for the resources it receives and their uses.
Queslions concerning this report or requests for additional information should be
directed to the Town Manager or the Director of Finance al 100 East Main Street,
Christiansburg, Virginia 24073, telephone (540) 382-6128. The Town's website
address is www.christiansburg.org.




TOWN OIF CLIRISTIANSBURG

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OFF JUNLE 30, 2010

ASSels
Current Assets:
Cash
Recelvables (et of allowance for uncoltectibles)
Prepaid Hems
pue from Other Governments
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets et of accumulated depreciationy:
Land
Land mprovements
Buildings anct Structures
Machinery and Equipment
venicles
nfrastruciure
Construction in Progress
Streets and Highways
Bond Issue Cost

Total Non-Current Assets, Net

Total Assets

Liahilities
Accounis Payable
Consumer Deposits
Due to Water Authority
Salaries Payable
Accrued General Obligation Bond mtcrest
Interest Payable
Long-Term Liabilities:
Bond Premium
Amounts due within one year
Due in miore than one year

Total Liabilitics

Net Assels
nvested in Capital Assets, Nel of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Perpetual Care:
Nonexpendabie
Unrestricted

Total Net Assels

See accompanying noies to financial stalemeoerus.

Exhibit A

Governmentat Business-Type

Activitles Activities Total
15,179,071 - s 18,179,071
3,272,537 1,079,503 4.352.130
50,725 59,725
319,058 - 619,058
19,130,390 1,079,593 20,209,983
2,01, 304 2,500 2,156,894
G48,40:4 - 548,494
6,095,832 19,897,376 26,593,208
2,554,752 19,439,770 21,994,522
£85,487 - 685,487
1,104,954 - 1,104,954
25L413.134 - 21,413,134
75,111,848 - 75,111,848
143,907 - 143,907
110,502,802 39,349,646 149,852 448
129,633,192 40,429,239 170,062,431
3,185,692 1,344 3,187,036
- 275,135 275,135
- 369,622 360,622
84,838 - 84.838
- 154,365 154,365
245,560 - 245,560
68,832 - (8,832
728,504 746,747 1,475,251
13,218,631 7.358,602 20,577,323
17,532,057 8,905,905 26,437,962
97,268,970 31,179,842 128,448,812
289,784 - 289,784
14.,542,38l 343,492 4,885,873
112,101,135 31,523,334 ] 143,624,469




TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

STATEMENT OFF ACTIVITIES

IFOR TUE YEAR ENDIED JUNE 30, 2010

Progreun
nRevenues

Charges for

Opoerating Capital
Grants and

Grants and

Functions/A?rogranis Expenses Services Contribuwions Contribwions
Goavernmenial Activilies

General Government 2.205.112 S - 5 -

Public Safety 8,022,207 - 428,117 802,659

Public Works 5,313,092 1,[97.592 - -

Healtih and Welfare 3.100 - -

Parks, Recreation, and Culture 2,620,i04 199.813 -

Community Development 1,392,967 -

Interest on Long-Term Debt 60,257 - . -
Total Governmental Activities 20,616,839 1,397,405 4281417 802.659
Business-Type Activities

water and Sewer 3,188,380 5,932,787 -

Total Business-Type Activities 5,188,386 5,932,787 - -
Total Primary Government 26,805,225 7.330.192 5 428,117 $ B802.659

See accompanying notes 1o ftnancial statements.

General Revenues
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Prepared Meal
Other
Permits, Fees and Licenses
Revenues From Use of Property
mvestiment Earnings
ruergovernmental
Fines and Forfeitures
Cemeltery
pMiscellaneous
Grants in Aid of Construction
Transiers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Assels
Net Assets, July |, 2009
Net Assets, une 30, 2010




Fxhibit B

Net {Expense) Revenue and

Change in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmoental

Business-Type

Activities Activities Tolal

5 {2,205,112) s s (2,205,112)
{6.791,431) 16,791,431}
{5.115,500) (5.115.500)
{3,100) {3,100
{(2,420.291) (2,420,201}
(1.392,067) (1.392,967)
(G0,257) (60.257)
{17,988,658) (17,988,658}
(255,599) {255,599)
- {255,599) (255.599)}
5 {17,088.058) S {255,589} S (8,244,257}
2.890.073 2,990,073
1,483,200 1,483,200
4,503,818 4,503,818
6,064,603 6,064,603
203,908 203,008

94,201 94,201

263,518 263,518
3,414,508 3,414,508
118,559 [18,550

96,735 - 936,735

320,188 128,903 449,091

788,355 74,655 863.010
{(707,721) 707,721 -
190,634,215 all1,279 20,545,494
1.645.557 655,680 2.301,237
110,455,578 30,867.654 141,323,232

) 112,101,135 S 31,523,334 5 143,624,469




TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2010

ASSCIS
Cash

Receivablas tnetl of allowance for uncollectibles)
raxes, ncluding penalies (ool of allowance of
Accounls (el of atlowance of $50,109)

Prepaid Hems

Lue from Gther Funds

Due from Other Govemmensa
Tolal Assels

Liahililics
ACCounts Payable
Sataries Payabloe
pue 10 Oiher Funds
peferred Rovenuc
Tolal Liahilitics

Funed Batance
Reserved for
Pempociual care
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Spacial Revenue Func
Tolal Funud Balance

Total Liabiiies and Fund Balance

See accompanying notes 1 financial slalements,

Exhibi1 C

Special Tl
Goeneral Cemoetery Rewvenue Govoeramieintal

Fund Fund Fund Fonds
S 14,803,239 s 280,783 & 20,049 S 15,1790.071
124,760 - §24.766
14034, 140 - £O34,140
59,725 - 539 Rrpeis
358.605 - - 358.695
250,583 - 368,475 314,058
3,601,148 280,783 34524 17.375.455
3,185,692 - 3.85.602
84,838 - 84,838
- - 358,605 358.695
7.245 - 0,780 17.025
3,277,775 - 368,475 3.646.250
- 280,783 - 289,783
13.413.373 - - 13,413.373
- 26,049 26.049
13.413.373 280.783 26,044 13,720,205
S 13,801,148 & 280,783 S 344,524 S 170375455




TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG 1ixhibit D

GOVLERNMENTAL FUNDS
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEEE 17O THE STATEMENT OF NET ABSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2010

Fungt Batances-olal governmental iunds s 13,720,205
Amotins reported for governmenial activitles in the Siatement of Not Assets are different becaasao:

The Instaliment of the real properly 1axes receivable would not he recognized for govemmoenial

activitics because it is not collectible within 45 days afior year-cnd 2,113,631
Caplal assens used i governmental activilles ere not financial resources and herefore are
nol reported in the governmentat funds:
Govemmenial capilal asseis S 125,977,952
Loss: accumulated deproeciation and amortization (15,475,150) 110,502,802
Compensailed absences are not due and payable in the current year and therefore are nol
reported In the govemmental funds, {485,043}
Landill Closure and Posiclosure care cost are nol due and payable in the current year
(152,093}

and therefore are nol reported in he governmental funds.

mterest payable tsed i ihe governmental aciviiies are nol payable from cureeit riesources
and therefore are nol reported in he govenunenil funds. {245,560)
Peferred revenues reported inthe govenunentat funds are recognized as revenues for the

govemmeaental acivitles, 17.025

Governmenal funds report the cflect of bond premiums when debt s firstissucd, whereas hese
amounts are deferred and amonized inthe siatement of acivitios and reported as a long-aerm
Trahility on the Statemoernt of Net Assels. {68.832)

Accrued merivsick pay (OP1EB) are not due and payable inhe cirent year and therefore are not

reported in the governmenial funds, (145.000)

Long-erm labllites are not due and payable i the cuarrent year and therclore are not repxied
in the govermmenial funds:

(L845L(KN
(HOOB0,000)
(1,240,000 {13, 1650400

2007 Rovenue Bond
2004 Revenue Bond
1065 General Obligation Nole

Nel Assals of Governmoenial ACviies 5 112,101,135

See accompanying notes 1o {inancial stalements,
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TOWN OF CHRISTIANSIBURG

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANIY CHANGES BN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDEL JUNE 30, 2010

Hevenuies:
Taxes:

Property

Sales

Prepared Meal

Other
Permits, Privilege Fees and Regulatory Llicenses
fines and Forfeilures
Revenues from Use of Propernty
invesiment Eamings
Charges for Services
intergovemmental
Cemelery
Miscellaneous

Total Revenies

xpenciiures:
Generad Goverrnnent Administradion
Public Safety
tablic wWorks
Health and Wellare
Parks, Recreation angd Calluge
Cormmnunity Developament
Capilal Outiay
Debt Service:
Princinal Retiremen
Inerest and Fiscal Chargdes
Total Expenditures

Excess of Expendilares over Revenues

Other Financing Sources (Usesy
Insurance Recoveries
Translers (to) [rony
wWater and Sewer Fungl
Special Revenue Fund
Cemetery FFund
Tolal Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Ned Changles in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1, 2000
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010

See accompanying noles o financial stalemenis,

HExhibit 17

Special Toal
Generat Cemelery Revene Governmental

Fued I"und Fund Fungls
s 3,053,658 ] - S - s 3.053.658
1,483,200 - . 1,483,200
4,503,818 - . 4,503,818
6,064,603 . - 6,064,603
203,008 . - 203,008
118,550 - - 118,559
94,20 - - 094,201
255,754 7.635 120 263,518
1,397,405 71,870 - 1,469,275
3,685,031 - 960,343 4,645,374
- 24,865 - 24,865
227,205 . 8,022 256,187
21,087,582 104,370 38,304 22,161,346
1,937,708 - - 137,708
3,626,215 - 20,7373 (3,858,588
SATONTE - 3079078
3000 - - 3400
2,305,876 13363, 268 - 2,442,144
1,374,850 . - 1,374,850
7,062,820 - 760,858 8,723,878
515,000 - . 515,006
GO4.544 - - G4 544
24,413,191 136,268 GG0,331 27.539,7490
{72.325,609) 131.808) 120,937) (5. 378,444
84,002 - 84,002
(707,721 - - (707,721}
{46,9806) . 46,0806 -
(93,778) 03,778 - .
{7G4,483) 03,778 446,086 (G23,719)
{€3,090,092) GELBRO 26,040 {6,0002,163)
16,503,465 22703 - 10,731,368
S 13,413,373 S 280,783 § 26,040 S 13,729,205




TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG Exhibit
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO THIE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

MNet Change in Fund Balances-lotal governmeniai fund 5 {6.002,1G63)

Amounis reported for governmenial activities in the Siatement of Aclivities are different because:

Revenues in the Statement of Activities thal do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the funds:

5 (114,436}

Change in deferred revenues
50,851 (63,585)

Change in 1axes receivable

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expendilures. However, in the Stalement of
Activilies, 1he cost of those assets is depreciated over thelr estimated useful lives:

Expendiures for capital assets 5 B6,922.026

tess: current year depreciation {928,658 5,903 367
value of additional roads 1aken over by the Town. The value of the roads is considered contributed
capital and is included in capiiat assets. 788,354
Govemmenlal funds report an increase in compensated absences as an expenditure.
However, in he Statement of Net Assets the addition increases long-tenm ltabllities. (11,238)
Govemmental funds report an decrease 10 post closure care costs as an expendire,
However, in 1he Statement of Nel Assets the reductions reduce long-term liabilities. 32.430
Governmeniai funds repon repayment of bond principal as an expenditure, However, in the
Salemnent of Net Asscts he repayment reduces long-lerm labilities. 515,000
Governmental funds ¢o not include amortization as an expenditure. However, bond issue cosis
are capitalized and amorsized over the life of the bond on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances.
Current year amortization {5.894)
mterest expense reported in the Statement of Activilles includes amounts that should be capitaiized
as construction In progress, ‘The interest pald Is not an expendiiure and is reported as
construciion in progress on ihe Statement of Nel Assets. 535,807
hiterest expense reported in the Statement of Activilles does not requtire 1he use of current
financial resources &nd is therelore not reporied as expenditures in govermental funds, R.389
Accrued merivsick pay {OPEB) in the Siatement of Aciivites does not require the use of current
1145,000)

financial resources and is therefore not reported as expendilures in govemmental fungds.

Change in Net Assets of Govermmental Activities S 1645557

See accompanying notes to financial stalements.
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TOWN OF CHRISTIANSRBURG

GENERAL FUNEB
BUBDGLETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Beginning hudgetary fund balance:

Hevenues dnflows)
General Propeily Taxes
Conswmer Utility Taxes
Business Licenses Taxes
Franchise Licensa Taxes
Aotor Vehicles Licensoes
Bank Franchise Texes
Transient Ladging Faxes
Peepareed peal Tax
Cigarette Tax
Builcting and Zoning Fees
Coun andd Parking Fines
nieres!
ientals and Sale of Swphus llems
solid wasie Service
DPR Fees and Contributions
Miscellaneous
Mon-Calegorical
sta1e Ald (ABC), eic.
Sales Tax
LXICP Grants
Emergency Service Granls
Streel Maintenance Paymets
Eitter Contro! Grant
Eaw BEnforcement Funds
Mastonal Guard Armory
Community Development Entilement
121 Grant
Non-Roevene Receipts
Transfers/Arevious Appropriattons/Carry Overiond Proceeds
Bond Construction Fund
Amounts Available for Expendinres

Expendires (Oulflows):
General Government Administragion
Police Departmuen
voluneer Flre Deparinent
Lilesaving and Rescue
mspections
Sireael Pepanment
Solid Waste senvice
Buildlng andt Grounds
National Guaand Arnnory
nunicipal Building
Municipal shop
waelfarerSocial Services
Parks and Recreation
Aduatic Coenter
i.ibrary
Planning/Communiiy Development
Engineering
Do Service
Transieaes

Tatal Bxpendilures

Ending Budgeary fund atance

See accompanying notes to financial siatemoents.

Exhibit G

VAranoe from

Aciual Final Budgeat
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Posilve
Qriginal Final Basis) {Negalive)
s [6.103.604 s 16,193,604 S 16,193,604 S -
2,807,250 2.897.250 3.053.658 156,408
510,000 510,000 530,383 50,383
LB6G.0U0 L866.000 1462307 06,307
{40,000 FHOL(HIO) 15:4.01) 14.011
HIO,000 00 34T 54947
430.000 430,000 470031 A514X31
H55.000 8550400 748,701 {085,208
£, 803,000 4,103,000 4.5003.818 1308, 1822}
HB50.000 (50,000 T3 250 13,244
110,500 11,500 203,008 035,408
81,000 81,000 1HE.554 37.554
165,000 35,000 255,754 00,754
221,500 221,500 04,201 (127,20
110,000 PO 1. 1ty7, 502 B7.5%2
BEH,500 880,500 207,280 (682,220}
TOL500 704,500 172427 (526.073)
1,362,000 1,362.000 1,200,156 (7844
1,50,000 1.500,000 14483200 116, 710)
45,000 45,000 167.348 122,348
46,000 46,000 46,755 755
2.600.000 2,640.000 2.6B7.£20 12.57hH
- - 4.370 4. 370
H60,700 460,700 436,862 1233.838)
4.000 4,000 4.085 85
120,000 120.000 . (120,000)
208,000 208,000 43,038 65-4,662)
HX000 10,000 84,002 74,002
4,027,481 4,027,481 - (+.927.48])
1,531,000 1,535,000 4,333 (£.526,667)
45,038.035 45,038,035 37,365,188 {7.672,847}
2.162.265 2,162,265 2.052,314 109,946
5,843,004 5.843.01) 5,481,308 432,516
1.1465,7341 E 146,34 7I5.708 33105473
GE3.6G27 643,427 S5, 2130 07.307
358,407 358,407 353,167 5.240
LT TGO FERT 760 4,852,650 05,110
1,301,608 13301608 LI70.837 131,471
57,015 3,357
. 3,030 12,105
135,368 T 730 201,608
184,305 F37.h b5 21,859
3.100 3,100 .

- 2.025338 LE28.524 196,814
5,743,105 5,743,145 G.572.342 1829,147)
15,000 13,00 ESO08) -
1,281,541 1L28ET54 7H). 281 5712060

807,602 BO7.602 707080 100,522
1LHY.G00 LHSLB00 1115444 56

. - 548,485 (B848.185)

27,814,078 27,814.978 27261676 553,302

$ §7,223,057 5 17,223,057 S 10,103,512 5 {7.119,545)




TOWN OF CHRISTIANSIURG Exhibyt G
{contineed)

GENERAL FUND
BUDGLETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Explanation of Dilferences belween Budgelary Inflows and Ouiflows and GAAP Reveniues and Expendilures:

SourcesAnflows of Resources:

Actuat amounts (hudgetary basts) "available for expenditures” from the budgetary comparison
5 37.365.188

stalement.
The fund balance at the beginning of the year Is & budgelary resource b is not a current year

revenue for financial siatement puoses Exhibit B (16,163,604}
Insurance recoveries are Inflows of hudgetary resources ut are not revenues for financlal reporiing

pumposes Exibit ). {84,002

Totat general fund revenues as reported on the siatement of revenes. expendilures, and changes
iry funet hatances (Exhibit B) $ 21087582

Uses/Ouiflows of Resources:

Actual amounts hudgeany basis) “otal expenditures” rom he budgetany
COMPASOn siaenienl. s 27260670

‘Franslers 10 other unds are oufows of budgetary resources Hut are not expendiures Tor Mancial
reporting puposes (Exhibit Bh

Fotal general fund expenditures as reponed on the siaiement 0f revenues, expendinires, and
changes in fund halances (Exhibit By

{H4B.185)

See accompanying notes to financial siatements.




TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS QF JUNE 30, 2010

Assels

Current Assets:
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance for
Uncollectible Accounts of $153,954)
Total Current Assels

Non-Current Assels:
Wwater System
Equipment
wWaste water Sysiem
Waste Water Treaiment Plant
Less: Allowance for Depreciatlon
Total Non-Currend Assels

Total Assets
L.iabilities

Currerd Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Generai Obligation Bond Interest
Consumer Deposits
Due to Waler Authority
Current Maturitics VA Revolving Loan Fund
Compensated Absences
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
VA Revolving Loan Fund
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabililies
Net Assels
invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

uUnrestricied Assels
Total Net Assels

See accompanying noles to financial statements.
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Exhibit H

Enterprise

water and Sewer

Fund

1,079,583

1,079,583

11,523.900

3.033.353
16.556.,088
31,403,055
(23.166,761)

39,349,646

40,429,239

1,344
154,365
275,135

369,622
656,747
90,000

1,547,213

7.358.602

7,358,692

8,905,905

31,179,842
343,492

5

31,523,334




TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

PROPRIETARY IFUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET AS5ETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Revenues:
Charges for Services:
Waler and Sewer Service Fees
water and Wastewater Connection Fees
Penallies and Other
Total Revenues

Operating Expenses:

Salaries and wWages

Employec Benefils

walter Auihority Purchases

Utilities

Repairs and Maintenance

Depreciaiion and Amortization

Materials and Supplies

Interest and Fiscal Charges

General and Administrative
Total Operaiing EXpenses

Operating Income (LOSS)
Granis in Aid of Construction
Transfers In

Change in Net Assels

Net Assets, July t, 2009
Net Assets, June 30, 2010

See accompanying notes to financial stalements.
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Exhibit §

Enterprise

water and Sewer
Fund

S 5,519,143
413,644
128,903

6,061,600

1,478,391
220.894
1,269,776
325,957
257,696
555,606
537,265
294,198
248,513

—

5,188,386

(126,696}

74,655
707,721

655,680

30,867,654

5 31,523,334




TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
IFOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNLE 30, 2010

Cash Flows {rom Operating Activities
Cash Received Fron:
Custonters
Cash Paid 1o/for:
Empioyees
Supplies and Services
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activitics

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Transfer from General Fund
Net Cash Flows from Non-Capiial Financing Aciivities

cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Payment of Principal
Interest on Debt
Purchase of Fixed Assels

Net Cash Flows from Capital and Relaied Financing Actlvities

Cash Flows {rom Investing Activitics
None
MNet Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July I, 2009
Cash and Cash Eguivalents, June 30, 2010

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) 10 Net Cash Flows
From Operating Activities:

Operating mecome {(L.osS)
Add: Depreciation and Armortization
Add: Interest Expense
Change in Currend Assets and Current Liabilities
(Increase) Decrease in Current Assets:
Accounts Recelvable
Increase {Decrease) in Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Waler Awthority
Consumer Deposits
Salaries Payabile
Compensaled Absences
Net Casiy Flows from Operating Activitics

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Aclivities:
Contributed Capital - Grants in Aid of Construction

See accompanying notes to financial stalements.
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IExhibit

Enterprise Fund

Waier & Sewer
Fund

5

5.911.090

(1.713.384)
(2,631.698)

1,566,008

707,721

707,721

(634,055}
(227,238}
{1,412,436})

{2,273.728)

5

t126.696)
[.555.696
204,198

(F19.1G9)

{18,038}
25,547

{31,431)

125.827)
11,728

1,566,008

74,655



TOWN OF CLHRISTIANSBURG

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The accounting policies of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia, (the Town) conform to generally accepted accounting
principles as applicable to govemmenis.

Reporting Enthy

FFor financial reporting purposcs, in conformance with GASB Slalement 14, Pefining the Governmental Reporting Entiyy, the
Town Includes ali funds, account groups. agencies, boards, commissions, and awborities hat are controlled by or
dependent upon the Town Council. Control by or dependence upon the Town Council was delermined on he basis of the

following:
1. The Town's ability 10 designate the management or significanily control the operations of the entity.

2. The Town's responsibility for ihe fiscal matiers of the entity, including the awhorizaion of hudgetary appropriations,
funding of operating deliciencies, contrel of use of surplus funds. responsibitity for debis, and control over the collections
and disbursement of funds.

3. The scope of public services rendered by and the geographic locaton of the entity.

Based on the foregoing criteria, the financlat activiiies of no other organizations are included in the accompenying financial
statements.

Financial Statement Presertation

In June 1999, Govermnmemal Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Stiements - ol
Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governmments, GASB Statement No. 34 established new
requiremenis and a new reporing model for the annual financlal reports of stale and local govemnmenis. GASB Slatement
No. 34 was developed to make annual reporis easler 1o undersiand and more useful to people who use governmenial
financial Informaton tc make decistons. GASB Statement No. 34 includes:

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) - MD&A introduces the basic financial stalemenis and provides an analytical
overvicw of the govemnment's financial activities in a narrative format. An analysls of the govermment's overall financial
position and resulis of operations s Included 10 assist users in assessing whether financial position has improved or
deteriorated as a result of the year's activiites.,

Government-Wide Financial Statemenis - Present financial stalements prepared using the economic resources measuremet
focus and full accrual accounting tor all of he government's aciiviies. These statemems will include all assets, lighilives,

revenues and expenses of the primary government.

The Town does not allocate indirect expenscs, The governmeniwide statements scgregate governmenial activities. which
are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmentat revenues, and business-ype activities, which rely on user fees and
charges for support.

Stalement of Net Assels - Presents both governmental and business-type activiiles on the [ull accrual, eConomic resource
basis, which incorporates long-term assels and receivables, as well as long-term debt and obligatons.

Statement of Aclivilies - Presents she net cost of each individual function. Program revenues are presented as a reduction of
the 1olal cost of providing program services. Progran revenues include charges for services, operaling grants and
contributions and capital granis thar are directly associated wilh a specific function. Taxes and omer revenue sources not
reporied as progran: revenue are Included as general revenue,

Fund Financial Statemenis - These {inancial statemenis present information on maior governmental and enierprise funds.

The accounts are organized on the basis of fund classificallon, each of which is considered to be a separale accounting
entity. The operaiion of each fund is sccounied for by providing a separaic scl of selt-balancing accounis that comprise IS
assets, liabilies, fund balances or net assets, revenues, and expendiures or eXpenses, as appropriate.

Governmen! resources are altocated to and accounted for In individual funds based upon the purposes {or which they are to
be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped in the basic flnancial
statemenis as follows:

Governmental Fund - accounis for expendabte financial resources, other than proprietary fund lypes. Governmental fund
types use the flow of current financial resources Measurcement focus, The major governmenial fund is:

General Fund - The General Fund is the major operating fund of the Town. All unrestricted resources, except those
required 1o he accounted for in another fund, are accounted for in this fund, ‘Fhe geneml operating expenses and fixed
chearges are paid from this fund.

Special Revenue Fund - This fund Is used 1o account for the proceeds of specific revenue souarces that are legally
restricted by contract or donor 1o expenditiire [oF d specilied purpose.
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Proprietary FFund - accounts for operalions that are financed and operated in a manner simiter 10 private business enterpriscs.
The proprietary fund measurement focus is on the flow of economic resources, Operaling revenues include charges for
services and other revenue. Operating expenses include personal services, as well as other services and charges, materials

and supplies and depreciation. The proprietary fund type Is:

Enterprise Fund - Finances and accounts for the acquisition, operation, and maintenance of governmenial facitiles and
services that are supporied by user charges. The operations of water and sewer [aclilties are accounted for and reported

in the Water and Sewer fund.

In accordance with Govermmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB} Statement No. 20, Accowning and Financial
Reporing for Propriciary Funds and Other Governmental Entitles That Use Proprictary fund Accounting, the Town has
selected one of the two optlons avalable (or proprietary fund reporling. The Town applies all applicable GASB
pronouncemeits and all Financlal Accounting Research Bulleting (ARB} issued on or afler November 30, 1989, unless they

conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncemenis.

Permanent Fund - Permanent funds are used 1o report resources that are legally restricted 10 the extent that only earnings,
not principal, may be used for purposes hat suppor the reporting government's programs.

Cemetery fund - Fhis fund Is used to account for principal trust amounts received and related inlerest income.  The interest
portion of the rust can be used o mabyain the community cemetery. On April 1, 2008 1he Town took over control of the
Town's cemelery from the Cemetery Corporation.

Budgetary Comparison Stalemernt - This statement is presented o demonsirate whether resources were obtained and used
in accardance with the govemnment's legally adopted budget. The Town revises the original budget over the course of e
year for various reasons. Budgetary information continues to be provided, and inchudes a comparison of the government's
original adopted budget to the cusrent comparizon of finat budget and acital resulis.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers 1o the pointl al which revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accoums and
reported In the financial statements, Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measwements made, regardless of the

measurement focus applied,

Governmenial activitles in the government-wide sialements are presented using e economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financlal statements. Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when a liability has been incurred, regardless of the uming of related cash flows.

Governmental funds are accounted for using the modiiied accrual basis of accouniing. Revenues are recogpized when they
become measurable and avallable. General fund tax revenues are considered measurable when they have been levied. To
be considered available and thus susceptible to accrual, the 1axes must be collected within the Town's period of availability
of 45 days. Uncollected taxes al lhe end of this period are reported as deferred revenues. Interest income and
Intergovernmental recelvables are considered susceptible (o accrual. Expenditures are generally recognized under the
modifled accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liabilty is incurred. However, debt service expenditures as well
as expenditures related to compensated absences are recorded only when paymert Is due.

As a resull of the different measurement focus and basis of accounting used in preparing the govemmeni-wide stalemenis, a
reconciliation between the governmentwide and fund financlal statements is necessary, Exhibit D presents reconclliation of
1he net assets as reported on 1he Statement of Net Assets (Exhibit A} o total governmental fund balance as reported on the
Balance Sheet - Governmental Fund (Exhibit C). Exhibit F presenis a reconciliation of change in nel assets as reported on the
Sialement of Acliviies (Exhibit By and the total changes in fund balance as reported on the Statement of Revenues.
Expenditares, and Changes in Fund Balances - Govermnmentat Fund {Exhibit E).

Deposits and Invesiments

The Town records invesiments at cost thar approximates fair value, Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
certiticates of deposii, demand deposits, and shortterm investiments with original maturities of three months or less from the

date of acquishion.

Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes and Accounis Receivable

The Town calciales its allowance for uncaliectibie receivables dased on historical collection data. At June 30, 2010, the
allowance jor uncelleciible taxes and accounis receivable was $75.706 for the General Fund and $159.954 for ihe Water and
Sewer Fund.

Property Taxes

Property taxes are assessed at thelr value on January 1. Real estale tax Is payable in one instaliment on December 5. On
January 1, real propeny taxes become an enforceable lien against the property. Personal property @ax is due on or before
December 5 during the vear of assessment. Fhe Town bills and collects taxes and recognizes revenue upaon levy for
governmentwide purposes. For the fund financial stalements, the Town recognizes revenue 1o the extent thal it resulis in

curreni receivables.

The annual assessment for real eslate is based on 100% of the assessed fair market value. The tax rates are established
annually, without limitation, The 1ax rale for real estate was $.1126 per $100 of assessed value for the year. The personal
propery tax rate was $.45 per $100 of assessed value for the year. In 1998, 1he Commonwealth enacted the Personal
Property Fax Reliet Act. The Commonwealth share of the tax was 60% for fiscal year 2009. Business furniture, fixwares, and
machinery and tools laxes are assessed at a rate of $.45 per 5100 of assessed valuation.
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Capital Assels

Caphat assels acquired or conswucied by the Fown with @ value in excess of $5.000 are reporied in the applicable
govemmental or business-type activiies columns in the government-wide fnanciat sialemenis. Capital assels belonging to
the proprietary fund are also reported in the applicable fund financial statements. Capital asscts are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost. Gifts or congibullons are recorded at fair market value when received. Depreciation is
recorded on a straightdineg basis over the estimated useful ffe of each capital assel. No depreciation expense is recorded for
land, conslruciton-in-progress. or sireeis and highways,

The estimated useful lives for caplial asseis are as follows:

Land Improvemernts 15 years
Building and Structures 25-50 years
Equipment and Vehicles 5-20 years
Infrastructure 40 years

In accordance with GASB Statement No, 34, the Town's infrastructure has been capitalized, retroactively, upen adoption of
the standard,

In accordance with generally accepled accounling principles, Interest expense incurred during the construction of a capital
asset is capitalized until the construction has been completed. The Aquatic Center was still under consiruction as of lune
30, 2010, but substantially completed, and incurred $531,849 of interest expense capitalized during the year. The Town's
Aquatic Cenler was put into service on July 17, 2010,

2. Compensaled Absences FPayable

It is the Town's policy to permit employees 10 accumudlale earmned but unused compensated absences. For government-
wide reporting, a liability is recorded for compensated absences when services are rendered and employees have camed
the right 1o receive compensation tor such services,

Town employees eam vacation and sick leave as follows:

yvacation:
» Twelve days per year for jess than five {ull years of service
v Fiftcen days per year for more than five but less han ten tull years of senvice
+ Eighteen days per year for ten full years or more of service

Sick leave:
+  One and one-founh days per month

Accumulaied leave is pald upon fermination. The maximunt would be 24 days plus any sick leave accumulated. subjecl o

Iimbtatons, after July 1 of the fiscal year. After five years of employment, an employee, upon retirement, will be paid for one-
fourth of accumulaled sick leave to a maximunm of $5,000.

The Town's liability at June 30, 2010 for these compensated absences was:

Current t.ong-Term
Portion Partion Teral
General Fund S 48,504 S 436,539 5 485,043

Liabilitles for compensaled absences are not liquidated urtil feave is aclually taken by employees or leave balances are paid
upon termination. The Town has estimated that 10% of the compensated absences palance can be iHquidated wilth
expendable available resources, and are considered a current liability, Both current and non-current portions of
compensated absences totaling $485.043 arc recorded (or governmenial activities in the govermmentwide swalements and
represent a reconciling item between the government-wide and funad presentations.

Ccompensated absences eamed by employees and charged 1o the proprictary fund are oxpensed and accrued as a labiliny
when incurced. Al Rune 30, 2010, the liabilities for compensated absences of the enterprise kind were $80,000.

3. Budgels and Budgetary Accounting

a,

[+

The Town adheres 10 the following procedures i establishing the budgetary data reflected in the Budgetary Comparison
Statement Exhibit Gy

The Town Manager, in coordination with 1he Finance Committee, prepares the budget and the Finance Commitiee presents
it to the Fown Council.

Legal notice of the public hearing is published In the newspaper at least 1O days prior 10 the hearing. Notice conlains
informaition as 1o date, place, and time. and soliciis citizen attendance or written comments at the hearing with a synopsis of

he budgel.

The public hearing is held at least seven days (Siate Code 16.1-162 as amended) prior to approval of the budget.

Budget is approved at least seven days afler public hearing, and no later than the beginning of the new fiscal year. Council
sets 1ax rates for real estale and personal property.

Noiice of budget adoption and avaitability for viewing of adopied budges is published In a local newspaper one time, within
ihirty {30) days of adoption.
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i. The budget basis is In accorgance with generally aceepled accouniing principles.

4. Deposits and Investments

Deposils

The Town's cash on hand and in banks at June 30, 2010 has a carrying value of $15,510,939. Of the Town's bank balances,
50 were uninsured and uncollateralized under the Virginia Security for Public Deposis Act at June 30, 2010,

Town and State staute {Code of yirginia, Chapter 3, Title 26) auihorize local govenuneits and other public bodies 10 ihvest
in obligations of 1he United States or agencies thereol, obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political subxdivisions
thereof. obligations of the hternatonal Bank for Reconstruction and Development (world Bapk), the Asian Development
Bank, e Aliican Development Bank, "prime qualiiy” commercial paper and cornain corporale notes: pankers' acceptances,
repurchase agreements and the Slaie Treasuwrer's Local Government Investment POOHLGIP)

Investments of the Town are categorized below 1o give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity ai year-endl.
Calegory 1 includes invesiments that are insured or registercd or for which the securiies are held by the Town in the Town's
hame. Calegory 2 includes uninsured and unregistered invesiments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer
pank trust deparrment or safekeeping ageni in the Town's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered
invesiments for which the securities arc held by the broker or dealer or by iis trust department or safekeeping agent. but not
in the Town's name. As of June 30, 2010, the Towivs deposi and investment balances were as {ollows:

Category
Non- Falr
I 2 3 Categorized Vialue
Deposiis - 7,099,890 7,099,890
Cenificates of Deposit - - - 35,566,871 6,566,871
Money Marke! - - - 1,511,026 1,511,026
Totals - - - 15,177,787 15,177,787

The following 1able provides a reconciliailon of deposits and investments 1o the Statement of Net Assets in Exhibit A:

Deposils s 7,099,800
Cenificates of Deposit 6,566,871
Money Markel 1,511,026
Petty Cash 1,284
Towal Cash 5 15179.67)

5. Receivables

Receivables as of June 30, 2010 consisted of the jollowing:

Governmertal Aciivities: Special
Generai Revenue
Receivables: Fund Fund Tonls
Taxes S 2,307,128 5 - 8 2307128
Due from Government 250,583 368,475 610,058
ACCOUNHS 1,084,249 - 1,084,248
Gross Receivables 3.64),960 368,475 4,010,435
Less: Allowance for Boubiful Accounts {118,840} . {118,840)
Net Recelvables 5 3,523,120 5 368475 § 3,891,505

Business-Type Activilies:

wWater & Sewer

Recelvables Fund

ACCOUNHS 1,239,547
1 ess: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (159,954)
Net Receivables S 1,079,593

The taxes roceivable account is largely comprised of the current and prior five years of uncollecied tax levies for personat
property, and the current and past nineteen years of uncollected real estaie 1ax levies. The collectibility of ihese accounts
has been considered in the allowance for uncoliectible accounts.

)
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6. Interfund Transfers

mer-fund transiers consisied of the foliowing at lune 30, 2010:

Transfer 10:

Specilal
water & Sewer  Revenue Cemetery
Fund ifundg Fund
Transfer from:
General Fund 5 707721 S 46,286 5 83,778
7. Changes in Capital Assels
Primary Government:
Balance Balance
Governmental Activities: July 1, 2009 Increases Decreases  June 30, 2010
Capiltal Assels Mot Being Depreciated:
t.and S 214304 S -5 2,144,304
Construction in Progress 14,856,737 6,556,397 21,413,134
Sireets and tighways 74,314,433 797415 75,111,848
‘l'otal Caplial Assets Not Being Depreciated 61,315,5G4 7.353.812 98.669,376
Capital Assets Being Depreciated;
Buildings anad SHucrIres 8.479.051 111,752 - 8,500,803
Accumulaled Depreciation 11, 718.449) (176,522) - {1,894,971)
Net Buildings and Struciuges (6,760,602 164,770) - 6.695.832
Infrastructure 2,854,350 158.382 . 3.012,732
Accumulated Depreciation {1.841.039) (66,739 - (1.907.778)
Net Infrastructure £OL3 3L 9,643 . 1.104,954
Machinery and Equipment 11,506,869 332,853 11830422
Accumulated Depreclation {3.908,950) (375,720) 19,284,670}
Net Machinery and Equipment 2.597.919 (43,167} 2,554,752
Land Improvements 865,920 28,654 894,574
Accumulated Depreciation (188,193} {57,887} (24G,080)
Net Land Improvemenis 677,727 {29,233} 548,404
Vehicles 2,537,155 257,076 - 2,794,231
Accumulated Depreciation {1,856,953) (251,791 - (2,108,744}
Net Vehicles 680,202 5.285 585,487
Bond issue Cost 176,814 - 176,814
Accumulated Amortization (27,013) 15.804) (32,007)
Net Bond Issue Cost 149,801 (5.804) 143,907
‘Foid] Capital Assets Being Depreciated 26,420.159 888,417 27.308,576
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
and Amaorlizauon 114,540,587} {934,553} (15,475,150)
Net Total Caplial Assets Being Depreciated 11,879,562 {45,136} 11.833.426
Governmenlal Activities Capital Assets, Net 5 103,195,126 $  7.307676 § $ 110,502,802
Balance Balance
Business-type Activilles: July 1, 2009 ncreases Decreases  June 30, 2010
Capltal Assels Not Being Depreclated:
Landg S 3 2,500 $ 5 12,500
Construction In Progress - -
Total Capltal Assets Not Being Depreciated 12,500 12,500
Caplial Assels Being Depreciated:
waler System 11,138,987 384,913 11,523,900
waler and waste water Equipment 2,853,037 179,417 3,033,354
Wasie Water System 16,141,459 414,639 16,556,098
waste Water Treatment Plant 30,894,931 495,624 31,390,555
Total Capital Assels Being Depreclated 61,029,314 1,474,593 62,503,907
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (21,.611,0685) {1,555,696) {23,166,761)
Net Total Capltal Assels Belng Depreciated 30,418,249 {81,103) 30,337,146
Business-type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 39418249 § {68,603} S 5 39,349,646




Depreciation and Amortizaion expensa:

Govenpnental activities:

General Goversment Adminisirasion 3 83,427
Public Safety 386.120
Public \Works 250,476
Parks, Recreation. and Culture 208,572
Community Developmert 5,040
3 934,553
Business-ype activities;
water ang Sewer S 1.555,6906

Amoriization expense for Bond Issue Cost in the amount of $5.894 Is included in the total for Parks, Recreation, & Culture.

8. Deferred Revenue

Deterred revenue represents amounts for which asset recognition crilerta have been mel, bui for which revenue recognifion
criteria have not been met. Deferred revenue as reported i the governmenial fund financial stalemenis at June 30, 2010
consisted of the following:
General
Fund
Various fees and grant revenue s 17,205

g, Long-Term Liabilitles

General obligation notes are direct obligations and pledge the full falth and credit of the Town. The charter of the Town of
Christiansburg limits the legal debt 10 10% of the assessed valuation of real estale within the Town limits. The Town's legal
debt margin at June 30, 2010 1s $182,727,448.

Cutsianding long-term liabiliies as of June 30, 2010 are comprised of the foliowing:

Primary_ Government - Governmenial Activilies

Balance Balance
July i, 2009 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2010
General Obligation bebt:
2007 Revenue Bond S 1,910,000 5 - & 55000 § 1,845,000
2004B Revenue Bond 10,315,000 235,000 10,080,000
1005 General Obligaion Note 1,455,000 - 215,000 1.240.,000
Total General Obligalion Debt 13,680,000 - 515,000 13,165.000
compensaled Absences Payable for the
General Fund 473,805 11,238 485,043
L.andfill Closure & Postclosure Care Cost iB,522 32,430 152,002
Bond Premiums 72.881 4,049 68,832
Meril/sick pay (OPEB) payable 145,000 145,000
Total GovernmentabType Activities
Long-Term Debt S 14,411,208 S 156,238 § 551479 § 14,015,067
Primary Government - Business-type Activilies
Balance Batance

duly 1, 2009

Additions Reliremenis

June 30, 2010

2001 VA Revoiving Loan Fund 5 7,076,066 S - 5 483,750 § 6.592.31G
1088 VA Revolving Loan Fund 1,573,428 150,305 1,423,123
Total Debt 8,649,404 634,055 8,015,439
Compensated Absences Payable tor the

Water and Sewer Fund 78272 11,728 90,000
Tolal Business-Type Activities

Long-Ferm Debt $ B,727,766 S 11,728 5 G34,055 & 8,105,439
Towl Pamary Government Long-Term

Liabillies 5. 23,138,974 § 167,966 § 1185534 & 22,121,406

{_ong-term Liabilities of the Town at June 30, 2010 is comprised of the {ollowing issues:

511,185,000 revenue bond issued December 15. 2004, matring annually with principat and
interest payable semi-annually through Augusi 1, 2034; interest rale varies, currently at 2.50%

51,070,000 revenue bond Issued July 30, 2007, maluring annually with principal and interest
payable semi-annualty through August |, 2027; interest rate varies, currenily at 4.25% .
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53,300,000 public Improvement bonds issued December 1, 1995, maturing annuatly with
interest payabte seml-annually through February 1, 2015; interest rate varles, currently at 4,50% ., 1,240,000

$2.800,000 (1998} VA Revolving Loan Fund. The Loan was refinanced on June 1, 2006 al
3.7% . wih semi-annual payments of principal and interest in the amount of $103,572 on June 1
and December 1. Final payment is due June 1, 2018. 1423123

$10,311,000 (2001} VA Revolving Loan Fund, The Loan wili be financed over 20 years at 3.50%
with semi-annusl paymenis of principal and interest in the amount of $367,010 on Seplember | G6,502.316

and arch L

Tolal General Obligations and VA Revolving Loan 21,180,439
Compensatcd Absences Payable 575,043
Landfill Closure and FPostclosure Care Cost Payable 152,092
Bond Premiums 6R,832
Meritisick pay (OPEB) payable 145,000

Total Long-lerm Liabilities s 22,021,406

The annual requirements to amortize governmental activiles debt outstanding as of June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Fiscal 2007 Revenue Bond 2004 Revenue Bond 1995 General Obligation Total

Year Principal Interesi Principal mierest Principal interest Principal Interest

2011 65.000 89,363 240,000 432,900 225,000 61,719 530,000 583,982
2012 70,000 86,325 245,000 424 100 235,000 50,750 550,000 561175
2013 75,000 83.0G3 255,000 4, HIO 245,000 39,000 575,000 536,i63
2014 75,000 79,688 265,000 403,700 260,000 26,750 G00,000 510.,i38
2015 B0.0C0 76,000 275,000 392,900 273,000 13,750 G30,000 482,650
201G 85,000 71875 285,000 381,700 - - 370,000 453,575
2017 90,000 G7.500 295,000 370,100 - . 385,000 437,600
2018 90.G00 63,000 310,000 358,000 - - 400,000 421,000
2019 95,000 57375 320,000 345,400 - - 415,000 402,775
2020 100,000 53,500 335,000 332,300 - - 435,000 385,800
202125 500,000 184,500 1,885,000 438,084 - - 2,475,000 1,622,584
2026-30 430,000 33,000 2,370,000 822,934 - - 2,800,000 855,034
2031-34 - - 3,000,000 520,088 . - 3,000,000 S20.088
Total 5 1.845000 S 045,180 S 10,080,000 S 6636306 $ 1,240,000 S 191,069 $ 13,I165.000 S§ 7.773.464

The jollowing general obligaion debt and va revolving loans are issued 1o suppornt business-type aclivities. The annual
Feqrlirements 10 amortize business-1ype activities debt oustanding as ot June 30, 2010 are as toliows:

Fiscal 2001 VA Revolving Loan 1998 VA Revolving 1L.oan Total

Year Principat Inlerest Principal nlerest Principal Interest
201! 503,830 226,387 155,47 51327 656,747 277,614
2012 518,512 208,704 161,740 45,404 680,252 254,108
2013 536,819 00,398 167.780 35,364 704,590 229,762
2014 555,772 174445 174,045 33.099 729,817 204,544
2015 575,385 151.823 i80.,544 26,600 755,939 178,423
2016 595,709 131,507 187,286 19,858 782,995 151,365
2017 616,742 110475 94,279 12,865 811,021 123,340
2018 G38.516 88,700 201,533 5,610 840,049 94,310
2019 561,060 606,156 - - 661.060 66,156
2020 584,300 42,817 . - 651,309 42817
2021 708,562 18,654 - 708,562 18,654

Total S 6,502,316 S 1407066 S 1423124 5 234027 &  B8,015440 $ 1,641,003

The allocation of long-term debt 1o the General Fund or the Water and Sewer Fund is defermined based on the Town's
intention for repayment of the debt. A summary of the allocation of debt issued is as follows:

Water & Sewer General |
Fund Fund Toal |

Bonds: |
005 Puilic Improvement Bonds 5 - 8 1,240,000 S 1.240.000
20045 Revenue - 10,080,000 10,080,060
2007 Revenue . 1,845,000 1.845.000

l.oans:
2004 VA Revolving L.oan 6,592,316 - 6.592.316
1998 VA Bevolving Loan 1,423,123 . 1,423,123
f.andili Closure & Postclosure Care Cost - 152,002 152,002
Compensated Absences 90,000 485,043 575.043
Bond Premiums - 68,832 68,832
Meritsick pay (OPEB) . 145.000 145,000
Total S 5.105430 § 14,015,967 5 22,121,406
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10. Fund Batances

Except for those reguired to comply with accounting siandards, all designations of General Fund balance reflect Town Caode
requirements or Town Council action in the contexi of adoption of the Town's budgel.

11, Defined Beneflt Pension Plan

AL

Pian Description

The Town of Christiansburg contributes to the Virglnia Retirement System (VRS), an agent and cost-sharing muliiple-employer
defined benefit penslon plan adminisiered by the Virginia Retirement Sysiem (Systemy. All fulltime, salaried permancnt
employees of participang employers musi panicipate in the VRS. Benecfils vest afler five years of service. Employees are
eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit at age 65 with 5 years of service (age 60 for participaing law enforcement
officers and firefighiers) or at age 50 wilth 30 years of service if elecied by the employer (age 50 with 25 years of senvice for
paricipaling law enforcement officers and firefighters) payable monthly for Jite in an amount equal 1o 1.7 percent of thelr
average final compensation (AFC) for each year of credited service. Benelits are actuarially reduced for retirees who retire
prior {o becoming cligible for full retirement benefits. I addition, retirces qualify for annual cost-of-living adjusiment (COLA}
heginning in 1heir seconcd year of retirement. The COLA is limited to 5% per year. AFC s defined as the highest consecutive

36 months of reporied compensation.

Panicipating local law enforcement officers and lirefighiers may receive a monthly benelit supplement i they retire rior 10
age 65. The VRS also provides death and disability hencfits. Title 511 of the Code of Virginia (1930), as amended. assigns
the authority 10 establish and amend benefit provisions to the General Assemixy of Virginia.

The System Issues a pubticly available comprehensive annual linancial report thal Includes financial statements and required
supplementary information  for VRS, A copy of that report may be downloaded frem thelr web site  at
http-awvw . varetire org/Pdi/Publications2009-AnnualReportpdl or obtained by weling 1o the Sysiem at P.O. Box 2500,
Richmond, vA 232182500,

Funding Policy

Plan members are required by Title 511 of the Code of Yirginia (1950), as amended., to contribule 5% of their annual salary 1o
the VRS. The Town of Christtansburg has assumed this 5% member contributlon. in addition, the Town is required to
contribute the remalning amounts necessary 10 fund ks participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis specified by the
Code of virginia and approved by the VRS Board of Trustees. The Town's conribuion rate jor the fiscal year ended 2010

was 10.15% of annual covered payroll,

Annual Pension Cosi

For 2010, the Town's annual pension cost of $1,380,0855 was equal (o thelr required and actual contributions.  The required
contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2008 actarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost
method. The acluaral assumptions included @) 7.5% invesiment rate of return, () projected salary increases ranglng from
3.75% 10 5.60% per year for general government employees and 3.5% to 4.75% per year for employees eligible for
enhanced benefits available 1o law enforcement officers and firefighters (€} 2.5% per year cost of living adjustments. Boih (a}
and tb) included an inflation component of 2.5% . The actuaral value of the Town of Christiansburg's assels is equal 10 the
modificd market value of assets. This method uses techniques that smooih the effects of short-term volaiility in the market
value of asscis over a five-year period.

Three-Year Trend miormation for the Town of Christiansburg

Annual Percentage

Pension of APC Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ending Cost (APC} Contribuled Obligation
June 30, 2008 5 1,186,009 100.00% 5 .
June 30, 20009 ] 1,162,950 100.00% S
June 3G, 2010 5 1380855 100.00% S

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2000, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 77.49% funded. The actuarial accrued liabiiity for
benefils was $27.026,827. and the actuaral value of assels was $21,641,007, resulting in an unfunded acigarial accrued
lability (UAAL) of $6,285,820. The covered payroll tannual payroll of active employees covered by the plany was 58,842,588,
and ratio of the UAAL o the covered payroll was 71.00% .

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary information following the notes 1o ihe {inancial
slatemems, presents mulilyear rend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assels is increasing or decreasing
over tfime relative to the aciuarial accrued Hability {AAL) for benefits,

i2. Risk Management

The Town Is exposed to varous risks of oss related to the following: torls, thell of, damage to, and destructlon of assels:
errors and omissions: injuries 10 employees: and natural disasters. The Town risk management programs are as follows:

\workers' Compensation - \Workers' compensation insurance is provided through the Virginia Municipal Self insurance
Assaciation. During 2009-2010, 101al premiums paid were $694.571. Benelils are those afforded through the State of Virginia
as oullined in 1he Code of Virginia Section 65.2-100: premiums are based on covered payroll, job rates and claims history.
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General Liability and Other - The Town has general liability. awtomobile liability Insurance, propenly insurance, and public
officials liability inswrance 1through the Virginia Municipal Liabiliyy Paol. Boiler and machinery coverage and properny
insurance are covered as per statlement ol values. Total premiums for 20092010 were $208,833.

Healthcare - The Town provides health insurance coverage lor employees fhrough commercial insdrance policies.
Employees' spouses and dependents may also be covered provided they pay for parl of the premium cost. During the year,
the Town paid 51,550,782 in healthcare premiums,

Other - There were no significant reductions in insurance coverages from the prior year and no settlemenis that exceeded
the amount of insurance coverage dunng the last ihree fiscal years,

All Town employees are covered by a blanket bond in the amoun of $10,000. Additionally, the Treasurer and Town
Manager are covered by surely bonds in the amount of $100.000 each. The surety is United States Fidelity and Guaraniy.

13. Blacksburg-Christiansburg-VPi Water Authority

The Blacksburg-Chrlstiansburg-VP1 Water Authority 1s a public body of politic and corporase of the Commonwealth of Virginia,
created pursuans to the Virginia water and Sewer Authorities Acl 1o acquire, Consiruct, reconsiruct, improve, extend, make
additions 10, operale, and mainiain a water supply system for the Town of Blacksburg, Virginia, the Town of Christiansburg,
Virginta, and Virginia Polytechnlc institute and Stale Universily. Each of the three localiiies appoint one member of the Board
of Direciors and two additional atlarge members are appointed joinlly by the three localites. The Town has an all
reguirements contract with the Authority for its bulk water purchases.

The Authority is not a part of the Town entity and the Town assumes no financial responsibility whatso-ever for the
Authority; accordingly, the inanciat position and results of operations of the Authority are not included in the accompanying

financial statements.

i4. Contribuiect Capitat

The contributed capilad accoun: of the Enterprisc Fund increasect from $18,407.883 10 518.482.338 in 2000-2010 ckle o
coniributed capitalgrants in aid of constraction of 574,655.

The contributed capital accout of the General Fund on the Staiement of Activities {or GASB 34 purposes inciudes the roads
given 1o the ‘fown by developers for the Town 10 maintain. The value of 5788,355 was arrived at using S100 per foot of
cenler lane miles. Total miles given to the Town during the fiscal year was 1.4931. The new road additions are included on
1he Staiement of Net Assets as a Non-Current Asset

15, Landiill Closure and Posiclosure Care COsis

In FY 1908, the Town adopled GASB Statemeni No. 18, Accotniing for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclostire
Care Costs. State and federal laws and regulations require the Town to place a {inal cover on its fandfll site, as well as other
sites opened in the future when they siop accepting waste, and to perforat certain maintenance and monitoring funclions at
the sites for thirty years aiter closure. Alihough closure and posiclosure care cost wilt be paid only near or after the date 1has
the tandiill slops accepiing waste, GASB No. 18 requires that the Town record a portion of these closure and postciosure
care cosls as a long-term llabllity in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $152.092
lability for landfill closure and posiclosure care cost at June 30, 2010 represents he estimated liabllity based on the usage of
100% of the estimated capaclty of the landfill. The Town wil recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and
postciosure carc as cosis are incurred.

The llability accrued at June 30, 2010 is based on what it would cost to perform all closure and posiclosure care in 2010,
Actual cost may differ [rom this estimate due 1o inflation, changes In technology or changes in regulation,

16. Postemploynient Benefits other than Pension Benelits

in the fiscal year 2009, the Town will adopt GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The statement was issued to provide more complete, reliable, and decision-
useful financial reporting regarding the costs and financial obligaiions that governmems incur when they provide
postemployment benetits other than pensions as part of the compensation for services rendered by their employees. The
statement will provide betier information 10 users abour the government's unfunded acwrarial accrued labillies ¢the
difference between the Town's total obligation for OPEB and any assels sct aside for financing the benetitsy and changes in
the funded status of the benetits over Hme. ‘The liablisy will be based on an actuarial valualion performed by a third-pany
every two years. The total ununded accrued liability at June 30, 2010 is $2,072.394, which is based on the Seplember 30,
2008 valuation. The unfunded accrued llability docs not account for any aclivity after September 30, 2008, The entity-wide
financial statements reflect she portion of he liability hat is due in the next fiscal year in the amount of $145,000, which is
hased on management estimates. The Town's plan is 4 pay-as-you go system.

The description of 1he retirement service merit plan/sick pay is as follows:

Town-Sponsored Service Meril: An employee retiring under VRS and who has at least 20 years of service 1o the Town is
eligible for payment of ten dollars (510} per monih for each year of service {as determined by Council with each budger vear).
Upon Medicare eligibility, e employee's Town Sponsored Service herit payment drops 1o a flat $100/month, These
payments are placed into the Retirement Health Savings for thal employee's use loward medical expenses aller retirement.

Sick-Leave Divesiiure gl retirement: Employees retiring In accordance with VRS guidelines and who have 20 years of
service with the Town of Chrssiansburg are eligible 10 take paymen of accrued sick leave payable direcily 1o them with the
following options:;
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An employee can be paid in a single lump sum of 25% of hisiher accumulated sick leave up 10 a maximum of 55,000 (pre-
taxed amount).

An employee can opt for a payou! of hisser accumulated sick leave balance over 120 monthly payments with no
maximum. Fhis optlon would mean ihe entire sick leave balance would be paid directly 1o the employce on a taxable

hasis over a 10-year period {120 payments).

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial staterments. the Organizaton has evaluated evenis and Iransaclions for poteniial recognition o1
disclosure through November 12, 2010, he daile the financial slalements were available to be issuecd, Managemaent is not
aware of any subsequent events that occurred or other matiers that should be disclosed.
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TOWN QF CHRISTIANSBURG SCHEDULE |

GENERAL GOVERNMENT REVENULS BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Permiis,
privilege Revenues

General Other Fees, and From Use

Property Local Reguiatory Fines and of Money and
Fiscal Year Taxes Taxes Licenses Forfeilures Property
2009-2010 $ 3,053,658 $ 12,051,711 s 203,998 s [18,559 5 349,955
2008-2009 s 2,898,687 s 12,382,884 5 137,796 5 8G,024 S 502,416
2007-2008 $ 2,775,831 S 11,66G,242 S 191,857 $ 95,025 5 1,203,765
20062007 ] 2,664,913 S 11,006,752 s 211,538 s 148,523 $ 1,303,090
2005-2006 s 2,626,603 S 10,068,405 S 252,318 = [38,831 5 674,152
2004-2005 5 2,530,438 $ 8,824,010 5 250.188 5 87,4606 s 318,460
2003-2004 $ 2403583 S 8,239,175 5 144,107 & 83420 & 118,531
2002-2003 ] 1,905,209 = 6,703,186 5 126,885 5 93,833 S 184,562
2001-2002 s 1,860,457 S 6,180,952 S 13,993 § 97,737 & 252,999
2000-2001 ] 1,861,389 S 6,031,780 5 143,924 s 99,896 S 496,539

Charges

FFor mnter-

Fiscal Year Services niscellaneous governmental Tolad
2009-2010 s 1,397,405 s 227.265 s 3.685,031 5 21,087,582
2008-2009 s 1,399,805 5 1,088,110 5 3,749,731 5 22,336,443
2007-2008 5 1,214173 S TI4,274 $ 3520364 5 21,381,531
2006-2007 5 1,192 332 $ 611,289 S 3419113 5 20,557,550
2005-20006 S 1,159,231 5 304,786 S 3,284,761 s 18,519,087
2004-2005 5 1,091,103 § 204,476 5 3,057,190 § 16,363,331
2003-2004 5 1,039,175 § 181,105 s 3,417,516 S 15,626,702
2002-2003 5 973,286 $ 198,725 S 2,737,806 5 12,923,492
2001-2002 $ 826,676 § 186,389 5 2,676,679 3 12,195,882
2000-2001 5 820,193 S 267,994 s 2,463,798 s 12,185,513



TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

GIENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENIDITURES BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

SCHEDULE 2

General Public Public Health and
Fiscal Year Administraton Safety Waorks wellare
2005-2010 S 1.937.708 S 6629215 s 5079978 S 3.100
2008-2009 S 1,701.156G B 6,488,748 S o dedd 11} s 3.040
20072008 5 1,618,229 s 5,900,555 s 4,630,843 S 2,700
2006-2007 $ 1,400,715 S 5219119 s 4237338 S 2,760
2005-2006 s 1.262.538 B 4,088,285 s 4,204,419 s 2.500
2004-2005 5 1,204,434 ) 4,499,932 s 4,033,452 S 2.500
2003-2004 5 1,084,717 S 4,145,907 S 3.652.370 S 2,400
2002-2003 S 1.005.050 S 3.810.856 S 3,325,153 S 2.400
2001-2002 5 921,343 ] 3.6505,787 S 3.120.079 s 2400
2000-2001 S B71,767 s 3.4, 497 S 2.844.886 S 2.300
Paiks,
Recreation
and Community Debt Capital
Fiscal Year Criiure Development Service Quitlay Total
2000-2010 5 23053876 S 1.374.850 S 1.119.544 s 7.962.920 5] 26.413.[H
2008-2009 s 1.845.749 5 1.258.527 S 1113324 S 7.188,705 ) 24,043.360
2007-2008 $ 1673455 5 1.906.070 S 1,005.851 S B.288.726 s 25,035,438
2006-2007 s 1,750,906 S 1,51G.400 s 058,129 s 3.124.325 S 18,209,602
2005-2006 5 1,374.703 s 851633 $ LOOO.OI0 S 3114504 5 16,798,502
2004-2005 S 1.292.271 s 804,038 5 308419 S 2.475860 ] b4 .6521,806G
2003-2004 s 1.230.679 5 1.372.615 s 347.048 S 2485637 5 14.321.373
200302-2003 5 E194.785 s G5 H2 5 370,172 S 3.15.346 5 13.474.974
2001-2002 5 LIGB.378 S G47.517 S 373.793 S 1.B2L.767 S 11.561.064
20006-2001 3 1.047.011 S 580.897 S 372,731 S 2.6092.528 s 11.545 617
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TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

ASSESSED VALUE OF TANABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Machinery
Real rersonal and
Fiscal Year Estaic Property Tools
2009-2010 S 1,015,422,886 s 143,984,570 S 52,321,082
2008-2009 $ 1,863,401,200 S 149,368,176 S 63,056,712
2007-2008 $ 1,801,033.201  $ 141,571,898 S 65,343,649
2006-2007 s 1,357,921,197 5 129,825,097 5 64,568,849
2005-20006 5] 1,298,699,328 S 129,691,123 S 69,209,974
2004-2005 S 1,255,068,756 S 123,002,537 S 61,649,750
2003-2004 S 1,210,613,686 s 125,703,367 S 65,958,377
2002-2003 S 885,741,866 5 122,405,549 & 52,130,486
2001-2002 S 860,071,045 S 122,088,578 5 54,706,793
2000-2001 5 818,013,362 5 109,102,065 5 60,909,063
Property Tax Rates - Last Ten Years
Machinery
Real Personal and
Fiscal Year Esate Property Tools
2009-2010 S 1126 5 45 S 45
2008-2009 5 1126 S 45 S <45
2007-2008 S 1126 5 A5 S 45
2006-2007 $ 44 5 45 S 45
2005-2006 S 44 s 45 s 45
2004-2005 S 44 3 45 S 45
2003-2004 5 4 S 45 S 45
2002-2003 3 144 S 45 s 45
2001-2002 S e S 45 S 45
2000-2001 S Jdd4 5 A5 3 45




SCHEDULE 3
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Public Utility
Mobile Homes Unequalized Equalized Total
s 4,792,700 S 43,501,580 S 44,276 5 2,170,067,104
5 4.579,840 S 40,896,193 S 46,137 S 2,121,348,258
s 4,607,360 S 40,715,462 S 42,329 5 2,053,313,899
S 4,740,740 s 30,703,941 5 50,090 5 1,587,809,004
S 4,601,520 s 32,261,723 S 38,470 S 1,534.,503,138
S 5,073,600 S 30,283,869 s 26,9CG4 s 1.475,105,476
S 4,692,300 5 25,076,014 5 20,779 s [,432,967,523
s 6,032,441 S 25,803,804 S 20,362 S 1,092.314.,508
S G,204,399 S 25,863,804 s 19,8G2 S 1,069,854 48}
S 5,865,491 S 32,276,387 S 22,630 S 1,026,189,004
Public Utility
Mobile Homes Unequalized Equalized
5 A 5 RER 5 A5
S Jdd S A4 5 45
5 et s Ry $ 45
S ddd s d44d 5 45
5 et s Add 5 45
S ddd S 44 S 45
S Adbd S 44 S 45
$ Al S A 3 45
S ddd S e s 445
3 e ] bt b= 45



TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

PROPERTY FAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Percent Delinquent (2}
Fiscal Total (1) Current Tax (1} of L.evy Tax
Year Tax l.evy Coltections Collecied Collections
2009-2010 5 3,002,251 s 3,083,654 99.72% s 168,857
2008-2000 s 3,060,904 5 3,050,888 00.67% $ 48,033
2007-2008 5 2,965,908 5 2,928,389 98.73% s 49,590
2006-2007 S 2,837,231 S 2,836,463 99.97% 5 29,276
2005-2006 S 2,771,986 S 2,812,849 101.47% s 55,744
2004-2005 3 2,689,188 5 2,615,979 97.28% 5 76,273
2003-2004 s 2,612,519 s 2,513,352 96.20% S 24,898
2002-2003 5 2,069,972 s 2,025,208 O7.84% s 34,521
2001-2002 $ 2,035,330 § 1,982,519 97.40% § 25,546
20002001 s 1,998,767 s 1,035,953 96.86% ] 28,896
Percent of Percent of (b
Tolal Tax Outstanding (3) pelinguent
Fiscal Total Tax Collections bDelinguent Taxes 1o
Year Colections 10 Tax Levy Taxes Tax l.evy
2009-2010 S 3,252,511 105.18% 5 125,620 4.06%
2008-20089 5 3,098,921 101.24% 3 135,188 4.42%
2007-2008 5 2,977,979 [100.41% 5 116,143 3.02%
2006-2007 S 2,865,739 101.00% 5 109,736 3.87%
2005-2006 S 2,868,593 103.49% ] [23,0G4 4.44%
2004-2005 S 2,082,252 IGO0 1% 3 159,608 5.95%
2003-2004 $ 2,538,250 97.16% S 190,471 T7.29%
2002-2003 S 2,059,819 99.51% s 142,187 35.87%
2001-2002 $ 2,008,068 98.66% S 145,073 7.13%
2000-2001 $ 1,964,849 08.30% S 102,554 5.13%
NOTE; (I} Excluslve of penaliies and interest. Includes public service corporations
and personal properiy relimbursement from the Commonwealth.

(2) This heading "Delinquert Tax Collections" includes all delinquent tax
collections made within the liscal year indicated regardless of when the
levy occurred. Also, included in towal is the amount of refunds paid
during the year,

(3) This heading “Outstancing Delinquent Taxes" merely reporis ol

oulstanding delinquent taxes as of the fiscal year end as one lump sun.
in subsequent fiscal years, these amounis are not being reduced by
subsequent coileclions for purposes of this schedute. Only ihe
outstanding delinquent taxes resulting {from the current fiscal year levies
plus 20 years delinquent real estale taxes and 5 years delinguent
personal property taxes are being reported in the lJump sum amount.
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TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE AND
NET BONDLED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Less
Assessed Value Debi
of All Taxable Gross Services
Fiscal Property Bonded Monies
Year Population (1} {in Thousands) Debt Available
2008-2010 16,847 s 2,170,067 5 13,165,000 5
2008-2009 1G,947 S 2,121,348 S 13,680,000 S
2007-2008 16,947 3 2,053,314 S 14,170,000 5 -
2006-2007 16,947 S 1,687,810 s 12,615,000 S -
2005-2006 16,947 5 1,534,503 S 13,015,000 S
2004-2005 16,947 S 1,475,105 S 13,400,000 S
2003-2004 16,947 S 1,432 0G8 5 2,515,000 S
2002-2003 16,947 s 1,092,315 S 3,140,000 s -
2001-2002 16,947 5 1,069,854 S 3,750,000 S
2000-2001 17,800 S 1,026,189 5 4,350,000 5
NOTE: (hy Tayloe Murphy Institute at the University of Virginia,

19944-99 data is from the Town Planning Department
2000-2010 dala is from 2000 Census




SCHEDULI: 5
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Debt Ratio of
Payable from Net Bonded Net Bonded
Enterprise Net Bonded Debt o Assessed Debt per
Revenues Debt value Capita
5 5 13,1G5.000 006111 S 776.83
s S 13,680,000 0064:] § 807.22
] S 14,170,000 00691 § 836.14
S S 12,615,000 00791 S T44.38
5 & 13,015,000 .0085:1 S 767.98
S S 13,400,000 00911 8 790.70
5 107,250 S 2,407,750 K010} rid B 142.08
5 510,750 s 2,629,250 00241 S 155.15
S 886,125 5 2,863,875 00271 8§ 168,99
S 1,257,375 S 3,082,625 L0030:1 8 182 .49



TOWN OF CHRISTIANSEBURG SCHEDULLI G

STATEMENT OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Legal Debt Limit:

0% of assessed value of taxable real estale (1)

$1.058,024,476 3 195,802,448
beduct:

Bonds payable ’ 13,165,000

Legal margin for creation of additional debt S 182,727,448

NOTE: (1) Includes assessed vajue of Public Service Corporation Real Estate.
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCI: IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and Member of Town Council
Christiansburg, Virginia

Compliance

we have audited the compliance of the Town of Christiansburg with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB  Circular A-133  Compliance
Supplemeni that are applicable to each of its major fecderal programs for the year
ended June 30. 2010, Town of Christiansburg's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's resulls section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulation, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
the responsibility of the Town of Christianshurg's management.  our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Town of Christianshburg's compliance based on our

auidlit,

we conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable (o
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
compitroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stales,
L.ocal Gouvernmenis, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance aboul whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence aboutl Town of Christiansburg's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as wo considered necessary in the
circumstances. we believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. our audit does not provide a legal determination of Town of
Christianshurg’s compliance with those requirements.

I our opinion, Town of Christiansburg complied, in all material respects, with the
reguirements referred to above that arc applicable to each of its major federal
programs for the year endect June 30, 2010.

mnternal Control Over Compliance

Managemen! of the Town of Christiansburg is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning
and performing our audit, we considered Town of Christiansburg’s internal control
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and (o test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of inteinal control over
compliance., Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Town of Christiansbhurg's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compiliance exists when the design or operation
of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, (o prevent, or detect and
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correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A malerial weakness in internal control ouver compliance
is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consicleration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies,
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Town
Council, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Uk B ke, CPA PC

November 12, 2010
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TOWN OF CHRISTIANSIBURG

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEL JUINE 340, 2010

Federal Grantor/Pass- Through Granlor/Grant [Program

Federal
CFDA
Number

Federal
Expenditures

.S, Dbepariment of Transporialion
Pass-ihrough programs frony

Virginia Department of Transportation:
Federal Aid Highway Program
Downtown Christiansburg Projec

U.S. National Highway Traffic Administration
Pass-through programs from:

virginta Deparimeni of Molor vVehicles:
Back 1o Basics

U.S. Department of Justice

Bulletproof Vest Parinership Program

Pass-through programs fron:

Bureau of Jusiice Assistance:

commomnwealih of Virginia Department of Criminal Justice:

Byrne Justice Assistance Grant
ARRA - Recovery Act Law Enforcement
Technology Improvemeni

Office of Justice Programs:
Bediord County, Virginia
ARRA - liernet Crimes Against Children

Total expenditures of federal awards

*

Denotes major program

See accompanying notes o {inancial stalements.
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20.205

20.607

15.607

16.738

16.580

16.800

S 759,620

20,226

1,083

1.4GO

258,411

14,365



TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG

SCHEDULLE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE ¥EAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Al

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

7.

5.

9.

The auditor's report expresses an ungualified opinion on the financial slalements of the ‘Fown of Christtansburg, Virginia.

MNo repertable conditions relaling to the audit of the financial staiements are reporied in the Report on Complance and an
internal Conirol over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financlal Statementis Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing Sandards.

No instances of nencompliance matertal 10 1he financlal siatemenis of the Town of Christiansburg, Virdinia were disclosed
during the audit.

No reporiable condiions relating to the audit of the major federal award program are reported in the Report on Compliance
with Reguiremenis Applicable 1o the Major Program and Internal Conlrol over.Compliance In Accordance with OMB Circular A-
133.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award program for the Town of Christiansburg, Viginia, expresses an
unqualified opinton.

Audit findings relative 1o ine major federal award program for the Town of Christlansburg, Virginia, are reported in Part C. of
this schedule.

The program tested as a major program inciudes:

FEDERAL AID FHGHWAY PROGRAM DOWNTOWN CHRISTIANSBURG PROJECT
CFDA Number 20.205

The shreshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The FTown of Christiansburg, Virginia, was delermined 1o be a low risk auditee,

FINDINGS-FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS-MAIJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

None
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TOWN QF CHRISTIANSBURG

NOTES TO SCHEDULIZ OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

I BASIS OF PRESENTATION

the accompanying schedule of expendilures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal
grant aciivity of the Town of Christiansburg under programs of the federal government for the year
ended June 30, 20t0. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audiis of Staites, Local Gouerniments, anect Norn-Profit Organtzations.
Because the Schedule presenis only a selected portlon of the operations of the Town of Christiansburg.
it is not intended 10 and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of
the Town of Christiansburg.

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Expenditures reported on the Schedule arc reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMDB Circular A-87, Cos!
Principles for State, Locdl, and indian Tribal Governments, wherein certain iypes of expenditures
are not alflowable or are limited as (o reimbursement,

B. DIRECT AND INDIRECT {PASS-THROUGH) FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal awards may be granied directly 10 the Town by a federal granting agency or may be
granted 1o other government agencies which pass-hrough federal awards to the Town. The
schedule includes both of these types of Federal award programs when they occur.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL. OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and Members of Town Council
Town of Christiansbuwrg, Virginia

we have audited the basic financial statements of the govermmental activities,
business-type activities, and each major fund of the Town of Christiansburg,
Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise
the Town of Christiansburg's basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated November 12, 2010, We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Compltroller General of the United States.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town of Christiansburg’s
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencess of the Town
of Christtansburg’s internal control over {inancial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Christiansburg’s intermal
control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to preveni, or detect and correct misstatements on a
timely basis. A material twweakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
missiatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis,

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or malterial weaknesses., We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider 1o be
malterial weaknesses, as defined above,

Compliance and Other Matiers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of
Christiansburg's  financial statements are free of material misstatement, we
performed tests of ils compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracls and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audil, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resulls of our
lests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to
be reported under Gouverniment Auditing Standards.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Town Council,
managemerit, and state and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities,
and is not intended 0 be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Wikl B Coke, Con P

Novembeoer 12, 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN
PROVISIONS OF LAWS, REGUEATIONS, CONTRACTS, AND GRANTS

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Christiansburg, Virginia:

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Town of
Chuistianshburg, Virginia. as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, and have
issued our repott thercon dated November 12, 2010.

we conducied our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
and standards applicable to linancial audits contained in Specificalions for Audits of
Counties, Cities, and Towns issucd by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements are
free of material misstatement.

AS part of obtaining reasonable assurance apoul whether the Town of
Christiansburg’'s financial statements are free of maierial misstatement, we aiso
performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants related to the following state compliance matters:

State Compliance Matters:

Code of Virginia:
Budget and Appropriation Laws
Cash and Investiment Laws
Conflicts of Interest Acts
Local Relirement System
Procuremcit Laws
Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act

State Agency Requirements:
Highway Maintenance Funds

Compliance with laws, regulations, contracis, and grants, applicable to the Town of
Christiansburg, Virginia, is the responsibility of the Towi's management, Providing
an opinion on such provisions was not an objective of our audit of the financial
stalements and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion,

The results of our tests relating to the above mentioned siate compliance matters
disclosed no instances of noncompliance thai are required (o be reported.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Town Council,
management, and state and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities
and is not intended 1o be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Wikl B, Cooke, 81, P

November 12, 2010






